
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE A 
 

Monday, 4th February, 2019, 7.00 pm - Civic Centre, High Road, 
Wood Green, N22 8LE 
 
Members: Councillors Vincent Carroll (Chair), Dhiren Basu and Luke Cawley-
Harrison 
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 
the meeting using any communication method.  Although we ask members of 
the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to include the 
public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting should be 
aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or recorded by 
others attending the meeting.  Members of the public participating in the 
meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral protests) 
should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or reported on.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  
(Late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear.  
New items will be deal with at item below). 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 



 

(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

5. SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE  (PAGES 1 - 2) 
 
The Chair will explain the procedure that the Committee will follow for the 
hearing considered under the Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005.  A 
copy of the procedure is attached. 
 

6. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR AN ADULT GAMING 
CENTRE LICENCE FOR G T PROMOTIONS LTD  (PAGES 3 - 136) 
 
To consider an application by GT Promotions to provide the provision of Adult 
gaming facilities at Unit 1, 450-454 High Road Tottenham London N17 9JN. 
 

7. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any new items of admitted under item 2 above. 
 
 

 
Glenn Barnfield, Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Tel – 020 8489 2939 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: glenn.barnfield@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Friday, 25 January 2019 
 



July 2018 

 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS 
PROCEDURE SUMMARY 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

1. The Chair introduces him/herself and invites other Members, Council officers, Police, 
Applicant and Objectors to do the same. 

2. The Chair invites Members to disclose 
i) any prior contacts (before the hearing) with the parties or representations received 

by them; and separately 
ii) any declarations of interest. 

3. The Chair explains the procedure to be followed by reference to this summary which will 
be distributed in advance. 

 

NON-ATTENDANCE BY PARTY OR PARTIES 
 

4. If one or both of the parties fails to attend, the Chair decides whether to: 

(i) grant an adjournment to another date, or 

(ii) proceed in the absence of the non-attending party. 

Normally, an absent party will be given one further opportunity to attend. 

 

TOPIC HEADINGS 
 

5. The Chair suggests the “topic headings” for the hearing. In the case of the majority of 
applications for variation of hours, or other terms and conditions, the main topic is: 
 
Whether the extensions of hours etc. applied for would conflict with the four 
licensing objectives i.e.  

(i) the prevention of crime and disorder, 
 

(ii) public safety,    
 

(iii) the prevention of public nuisance, and 
 

(iv) the protection of children from harm. 
 

6. The Chair invites comments from the parties on any other topic headings to be discussed.  

WITNESSES 
 

7. The Chair asks whether there are any requests by a party to call a witness and decides 
any such request. 

8. Only if a witness is to be called, the Chair then asks if there is a request by an opposing 
party to “cross-examine” the witness. The Chair then decides any such request. 

 

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE 
 

9. The Chair asks whether there are any requests by any party to introduce late documentary 
evidence. 

10. If so, the Chair will ask the other party if they object to the admission of the late 
documents. 

11. If the other party do object to the admission of documents which have only been produced 
by the first party at the hearing, then the documents shall not generally be admitted. 

  

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



July 2018 

12. If the other party object to documents produced late but before the hearing, the following 
criteria shall be taken into account when the Chair decides whether or not to admit the late 
documents: 

(i) What is the reason for the documents being late? 

(ii) Will the other party be unfairly taken by surprise by the late documents? 

(iii) Will the party seeking to admit late documents be put at a major disadvantage if 
admission of the documents is refused? 

(iv) Is the late evidence really important? 

(v) Would it be better and fairer to adjourn to a later date? 

 

THE LICENSING OFFICER’S INTRODUCTION 
 

13. The Licensing Officer introduces the report explaining, for example, the existing hours, the 
hours applied for and the comments of the other Council Services or outside official 
bodies.  
This should be as “neutral” as possible between the parties. 

 

14. The Licensing Officer can be questioned by Members and then by the parties. 
 

 

THE HEARING  
 

15. This takes the form of a discussion led by the Chair.  The Chair can vary the order as 
appropriate but it should include: 

 

(i) an introduction by the Objectors’ main representative 
 

(ii) an introduction by the Applicant or representative 
 

(iii) questions put by Members to the Objectors 
 

(iv) questions put by Members to the Applicant 
 

(v) questions put by the Objectors to the Applicant 
 

(vi) questions put by the Applicant to the Objectors 

 

CLOSING ADRESSES 
 

16. The Chair asks each party how much time is needed for their closing address, if they need 
to make one.  

 

17. Generally, the Objectors make their closing address before the Applicant who has the right 
to the final closing address. 

 

 

THE DECISION 
 

18. Members retire with the Committee Clerk and legal representative to consider their 
decision including the imposition of conditions. 

 

19. The decision is confirmed in writing within five working days of the hearing. 
 

 

Page 2



 

Page 1 of 5  

 
Report for:  Licensing Sub Committee 4th February 2019 
 
Item number:  
 
Title: Determination of Application for a Premises Licence for an Adult 

Gaming Centre Licence for G T Promotions Ltd, Unit 1, 450-454 
High Road Tottenham London N17 9JN  

 
Report  
authorised by :  Director of Community and Environment. 
 
Lead Officer: Daliah Barrett – Licensing Team Leader 
 
Ward(s) affected: Tottenham Hale 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non key 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

To consider an application by GT Promotions to provide the  
provision of Adult gaming facilities  at the above address and that the holder of  
such a license must hold a gaming machine general operating license from the  
Commission. If granted this would enable the Operator to make available  
for use up to four category B machines: any number of category C  
machines and any number of category D machines. Regulations state 

           that category B machines at adult gaming centres are restricted to sub- 
           category B3 and B4 machines. The applicant is seeking the ability to operate  
           24hrs per day 7 days per week. Appendix 1 
 
2. Principles to be applied: 
          This application must be considered under the three licensing objectives: 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling.  

 
3. Recommendations  

On considering an application for a premises licence (whether at a hearing 
or not) a licensing authority shall  
      (A) Grant it or 
      (B) Reject it. 
A Licensing Authority shall not determine an application for a premises  
licence made in  reliance on section 159(3)(b) until the relevant operating  
licence has been issued in a form which authorises the applicant to carry  
on the activity in respect of which the premises licence is sought. 
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 6



 

Page 2 of 5  

In exercising their functions under this part a licensing authority shall aim to 
permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as the authority think it- 

(a) In accordance with the any relevant code of practice under section 24 
(b) In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under 

section 25 
(c) Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs (a) 

and (b); and  
(d) In accordance with the statement published by the authority under section 349 

(subject to paragraphs (a) to (c) 
 

4.2     In determining whether to grant a premises licence a licensing authority may not  
          have regard to the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to  
          provide. 
  
5. Alternative options considered 

None 
 

6. Background information 
 

6.1      An adult gaming centre premises licence entitles the holder to make gaming  
           machines available for use within an adult gaming centre. The holder of an 
           adult gaming centre premises licence can make available gaming machines  
           from categories B3, B4, C and D.  
 
6.2      A maximum of 20% of the total number of gaming machines made available for  
           use on the premises can be from categories B3 or B4. There is no limit on the  
           number of category C or D machines that can be made available under an adult  
           gaming centre premises licence.  
 
6.3      Under section 47 (5) of the Gambling Act 2005, it is an offence to invite or  
           permit a child or young person to enter an adult gaming centre.  
 
6.4      The application contained all the requisite documentation including the  
           application fee and a plan of the premises.  
 
6.5      It can be confirmed that the application has been advertised in accordance with 
           the requirements of the Gambling Act 2005 and associated regulations and that  
           notice of the application has also been served on all responsible authorities.  
 
6.6     The application was also accompanied by a copy of the applicant’s local risk  
          assessment for this premises. A copy of the risk assessment can be seen at  
          Appendix 2.  
 
7.       Representations 

 
          Responsible Authorities  
7.1     Representations have been received from: 
          The Metropolitan Police,  
          Licensing Authority  
          Public Health – and letter from Doctor Grewel 
 
          As the responsible authorities identified in the Gambling Act 2005 and  

Page 4



 

Page 3 of 5  

          associated regulations.  
 
7.2     Interested Parties  
          representation has been received from interested parties. These are  
          Residents 
          Ward Councillors 
         Tottenham Regeneration Team 
 
7.3     The representation raises concerns about the following licensing objectives:  

 preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, 
beingassociated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime  

 protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling  

 
7.4    A copy of the representation received can be seen at Appendix 3. 
 
7.5   The applicants and their representative Mr Etchells met with the Licensing Officer 

  and Police Licensing Officer on 24th January 2019 to discuss their application.     
  Whilst no mediation was reached the appplicants submitted a list of proposed  
  conditions in response to the concerns raised in the letters of representation and  
  matters highlighted at the meeting. Appendix 4 

 
8    Legal implications 
 
8.1   The Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005, provides that in determining  
        applications the licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of the premises for  
        gambling in so far as it thinks it is–  
               (a) in accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24,  
 
               (b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission  
                    Under section 25,  
 
               (c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs  
                    (a) and (b)), and  
 
               (d) in accordance with the statement published by the authority under section  
                    349 (subject to paragraphs (a) to (c)).  
 
8.2   A copy of the Gambling Commission’s sector specific Conditions and Codes of  
        Practice applicable to Adult Gaming Centres can be seen at Appendix 5.  
 
8.3   The latest version of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing  

  Authorities is available on line at :-                     
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5.pdf 
  

        Parts 1 (General), 9 (Premises licence conditions) and 21 (Adult Gaming  
        Centres) are relevant to this application.  
 
8.4   A copy of the Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy, published in accordance  

  with section 349 of the Gambing Act 2005 can be seen at Appendix 6.  
 

Page 5

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5.pdf


 

Page 4 of 5  

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

 
Determination 
 

9   If the licensing authority issues an adult gaming centre premises licence, this will  
  be subject to the mandatory conditions applicable to such premises licences, as  
  prescribed under section 167 of the Act. A copy of the mandatory conditions    
  applicable to adult gaming centres can be seen at Appendix 7.  

 
9.1  Further to the mandatory conditions, where a licensing authority issue a premises  

  licence they may –  
               (a) attach a condition to the licence  
               (b) exclude a condition that would otherwise be attached to the licence by  
                     virtue of section 168 of the Act (default conditions)  
 
9.2  There are however no default conditions prescribed under section 168 of the Act  

   in relation to adult gaming centre premises licences.  
 
9.3  Where a licensing authority grants or reject an application for a premises licence,  

  they shall as soon as is reasonably practicable give notice to –  

 The applicant  

 The Gambling Commission  

 Any person who made representations about the application  

 The Chief Officer of Police for the area  

 Her Majesty’s Commissioners of Customs and Excise  
 
9.4  If the application is granted, this notice –  
                (a) must be in the prescribed form,  
 
                (b) if the licensing authority have attached a condition to the licence under  
                     section 169(1)(a) or excluded under section 169(1)(b) a condition that  
                     would otherwise have attached by virtue of section 168, must give the  
                     authority's reasons, and  
 
                (c) if representations were made about the application under section 161,  
                     must give the authority's response to the representations.  
 
9.5  If the application is rejected, this notice –  
                (a) must be in the prescribed form, and  
 
                (b) must give the authority's reasons for rejecting the application.  
 
         Where a licensing authority rejects an application for a premises licence, the  
         applicant may appeal.  
 
9.6  Where a licensing authority grant an application for a premises licence, either of  
         the following may appeal –  
                (a) a person who made representations in relation to the application  

Page 6



 

Page 5 of 5  

                (b) the applicant  
 
9.7  Appeals must be instituted in the Magistrates Court for the area within 21 days  
         beginning with the day on which the appellant receives notice of the decision  
         against which the appeal is brought.  
 
10.   FOR DECISION  

 6.1 The Sub-Committee must consider and determine the application. 
 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE
	6 Application for a Premises Licence for an Adult Gaming Centre Licence for G T Promotions Ltd
	Unit 1 450 - 454 High Road Tottenham London N17


